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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Within the eastern sector of the city of Charleston, West Virginia, lies
a district identified by sites and events associated with the entire history
. of the community. Appropriately, remnants in the form of buildings, monuments,
and planning patterns survive from all periods. It is, however, the period
‘of the late nineteenth and early twentieth centuries that is best exemplified
in the evolution of an important neighborhood from late Victorian modes to
the balanced, more symmetrical tastes of the post-1890's revivals. Of special
interest are rows of houses reflecting transitional design qualities rejecting
the late Victorian love for the irregular and picturesque, but displaying
persistent Victorian elements along with the Oriental and Prairie School themes
advanced by Frank Lloyd Wright. Among the most obvious of these influences
are square or rectlllnear plans, low hip roofs, and deep, nearly cantilevered
eaves.

‘The East End Historic District is set on a broad, ancient.flood plain
bordered by the Great Kanawha River on the south and by commercialized Washington
Street on the north. The West Virginia Capitol complex (presently included in
the National Register of Historic Places) forms an axis between the two important
residential East End neighborhoods. The Statehouse, an Italian Renaissance
structure designed by Cass Gilbert, dominates the sixteen acre esplanade shared
by the Governor's Mansion, "Holly Grove' Mansion (also listed in the National
Register), and the West Virginia Science and Culture Center.

The Capitol dome, rising 300 feet above Kanawha Boulevard, is a landmark
dominating vistas from all directions in the district. '"Holly Grove," built
in 1815 by Daniel Ruffner, is the oldest house in situ in the East End. The
Governor's Mansion, designed by Walter F. Martens in 1925, is a porticoed
Georgian Revival brick structure. The two East End hlstorlc areas flanking "the
govermment complex derive special identity and character as part of the Capitol
.environs, and the entire district is further enhanced by high hills on both sides
of the river which provide impressive vistas and subtle backdrops for buildings.

The East End displays a variety of architectural styles ranging from
isolated surviving examples of the Greek Revival to the late Victorian Queen
Anne and Richardsonian Romanesque. Turn-of-the-century revival upsurge is
noted in the Classical and Colonial compositions, while Eclecticism of this
period is seen in certain Spanish Colonial and Tudor style houses. Georgian
Revival and Chateauesque modes appear most frequently in the late teens and
early twenties. Several vernacular compositions of Italinate and Renaissance
styling are rare but pleasing complements to densely situated neighboring
buildings, and occasional frame Victorian cottages and bungalows appear‘among
the otherwise predominant brick structures of the district.

Both architectural and aesthetic integrity of the East End is noteworthy.
This may be.attributed in part to the development of the area from west to east,
with the older buildings in the Victorian tradition more common between Ruffner
and Bradford Streets, while the symmetrical Colonial, Georgian and Emglish styTe
buildings prevail in the areas between Ruffner and Elizabeth Streets. East of
the Capitol, excellent cottages and bungalows may be seen, their development
associated with the period 1918-1925. Architects and contractors building in the
area after its first growth were careful to maintain textures, materials,
perspectlve, and height in accordance with the existing scheme. Walter F. Martens,
designer of the:.Governor's Mansion and Fellow of the American Institute of
Architects, assured that the Colonial and Georgian manner of the nearly dozen
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buildings he designed on Virginia Street in the early 1920s did not detract

from the integrity of the earlier structures. So too did architect Fred Crowther,
who designed six English cottages on an ingeniously conceived cul de sac in the
- 1500 block of Virginia Street.

Evident in the designs of the Davidson Brothers of Charleston is the
appeal of the vernacular. In the Shadel House at 1511 Quarrier Street, the
use of brackets, peaked gables, and tendril~like porch columns in the traditiomn
of Art Nouveau recalls the tastes of another era. Although the prominent local
architect H. Russ Warne anticipated the Georgian Revival in Charleston with
his redesign of the Staunton-Zimmerman House at 1300 Kanawha Boulevard, status
and the appeal of eighteenth-century tradition led to the commissioning of
such non-area architects as Wilbur T. Mills of Columbus, Ohio, who designed
the house at 1425 Quarrier Street, the first of Georgian Revival lines above
Bradford Street.

The setting, period of construction, and design of the following pivotal
buildings contribute to the character and integrity of the East End:

1. Frank Woodman House, 1210 Kanawha Boulevard, East. Built c¢. 1888 for
Frank Woodman, wealthy businessman and civic leader, the house is representative
of late nineteenth century Queen Anne style. High, corbel-capped brick chimneys -
emphasize the vertical heave of the multiple-gable hip roof. Multi~textures
personified in half-round, imbricated wooden shingles, rock-face stone, glass-
and-marble plaster, and wrought iron decorate projecting brick bays topped
by shed and half-conical roofs. A semicircular brick driveway paved in a
herringbone pattern passes through the original, ormate, wrought-iron gate.

2, Staunton-Zimmerman House, 1300 Kanawha Boulevard, East. The Georgian
Revival design of this brick mansion is the work of noted Charleston architect
H. Russ Warne. The house was built in the 1890s for W.T. Thayer and redesigned
during the Zimmerman occupancy in the 1900s. Its symmetrical composition is
enhanced by a two-story front portico supported by wooden, fluted Corinthian
columns. The shallow hip roof is pierced by evenly spaced gabled dormers.
Classical detailing, including modillions, draws attention to the plain wooden
frieze skirting the house. Thayer started an iron foundry that later became
Trojan Steel of Charleston, and E.W. Staunton was part-owner of the Diamond
Ice and Coal Company as well as city clerk of Charleston in 1904. The house
is now the District 17 headquarters of the United Mine Workers of America.

3. MacFarland-Ruby House, 1310 Kanawha Boulevard, East. Built and designed
by Norris Whittaker in 1835, this brick house is a fine example of Greek Revival
architecture. The two-story portico at the front elevation is surmounted by
a triangular pediment. Two single-story side pavilions (the one on the west
a porte-cochere) add balance to the plan, while a low-pitched roof with ridge
running front to rear details the Greek temple theme.

4, Johnson-Davis House, 1422 Kanawha Boulevard, East. Built in 1888-89
by Judge Okey Johnson, this large, clapboarded Queen Anne style house is
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dominated by a tall, three-sided bay at the front sheathed in imbricated
wooden shingles. The angular, slate-covered roof is accented with finials,
and a veranda with turned, wooden columns fronts the house. Judge Johnson
was a Harvard Law School graduate and Justice of the West Virginia Supreme
Court from 1876 until 1888, M.T. Davis was president of the Kanawha Mine
Car Company, and he resided in the house after Judge Johmson, living here
from 1896 to 1922.

5. Hall-Lewis House, 1500 Kanawha Boulevard, East. Considered among
the most important residential designs of Charleston architect Walter F.
Martens, the house is representative of the Georgian manner popular nation-
wide during the 1920s. The five-bay center block is flanked by l%-story
wings. A centered entranceway is sheltered by a small rounded porch supported
by fluted Doric columns and decorated with fluted pilasters, and a semi-~-
elliptical fanlight and leaded-glass sidelights surround the doorway. The
high foundation and the use of stone pavement and wrought-iron rails point
to other Georgian influences. The English leadstone wall treatment is
enhanced by the subtle use of wrought iron, a trademark of the architect,
Built in 1929 for Myrtle Wood Hall, widow of Judge Cyrus Hall, it is now the
Dean Lewis law office.

6. Augustus Ruffner House, 1506 Kanawha Boulevard, East. The Augustus
Ruffner House, once called '"Cedar Grove' because of the cedar trees which
formerly surrounded the place, was built in 1834 as a farmhouse for Augustus
Ruffner, a farmer and lumberman. This three-bay wide and two-bay deep house
is tall with a medium~pitched gable roof. Cornices, balustrades, and the
door-surround are decorated with ornate woodwork and brackets. A ome-story
porch runs the full length of the front of the house, protecting the tall,
double-hung windows and the fancy doorway that is surmounted by a bracketed,
carved cornice. The walls at the front are done in Flemish bond. 7

7. O0O.F. Payne House, 1510 Kanawha Boulevard, East. The Colonial Revival
style of the Payne House typifies the national taste for stately homes in this

. century's first decade. Built in 1909, the tall, balanced features represented
in the rather heavy two-story portico point to the adaptive and interpretive
techniques of the local builders. The dentiled cornice, wide entablature,
Ionic columns and pilasters underscore the Classical basis of the design.

8. John Carver House, 1516 Kanawha Boulevard, East. Built in 1902-03
for coal operator John Carver, the massive red brick mansion was designed by
the Davidson Brothers (John and Wayland) of Charleston. Eclecticism is
reflected in the designers' application of picturesque massing, classical
detail, and rich textures. The spectacular wooden, three-story front bay is
crowned by a Baroque pediment, with windows at the second and third levels
of the bay divided by Ionic pilasters. The solidarity of the building is
emphasized by the rock-face voussoirs in the arched entryway flanked by
matching stone-trimmed side windows. Enormous corbel-capped brick chimneys
rise above the slate-covered, multi~gable hip roof that is punctuated with
classically detailed gabled dormers.
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9. Cunningham-Hallanan H&Lse, 1520 Kanawha Boulevard, East. The
symmetrical, Georgian design of this stuccoed house pleased Cass Gilbert, Sr.,
who viewed it while attending the affairs of the Capitol Building Commission
in Charleston during the 1920s, The centrally placed, one-story entrance pa-
vilion is pedimented and supported by paired Doric columns. Three evenly spaced
gabled dormers with arched windows accentuate the symmetrical qualities of
the design, and the rear elevation reveals the "U" plan of the house. Centered
high between the two blocks is a large window which lights the landing of an
impressive interior, two-angle Georgian stairway. The house was built c. 1920
for James S. Cunningham, and from 1925 until 1962 it was the home of Walter
Hallanan, former president and board chairman of the Plymouth 0il Company.
Hallanan was a prominent Republican official who served as temporary chairman
of the Republican National Convention in 1952 and was a vice~-chairman of the
Republican National Committee for several years afterward.

10. Baer-Crickard House, 1564 Kanawha Boulevard, East. Renaissance
and Tuscan elements dominate the arrangement of square shapes and horizontal
lines in the Baer-Crickard House. A square tower (elevator shaft) rises above
the shallow hip roof at the northwest corner, open rafter ends and paired
brackets embellish the eaves and cornice, and decorative panels and belt courses
in the stuccoed facade provide a backdrop for the small piazza fronting the
house. The symmetrically placed entrances are headed by elaborate stone hood-
moulds, while windows at the entrance elevation are detailed in architrave
trim. Mr. Ben Baer was a prominent wholesale liquor dealer who commissioned
the house c. 1920. Mr. Crickard is a Board member of the Charleston National
Bank.

11. Meredith P. Ruffner House, 1636 Kanawha Boulevard, East. Built for
wholesale grocer Meredith Ruffner about 1890, this tall frame house is a car-
penter's delight. Imbricated wooden shingles in half-round, diamond, and
rectilinear shapes decorate the four tall gables, while simulated half-
timbering and sawwork may be viewed in projecting bays and window alcoves,
Fronting the weatherboarded house is a porch supported by turned columns and
gingerbread brackets.

12. Thompson-McClung House, 2006 Kanawha Boulevard, East. Standing in
a row of late teen and early 1920s dwellings immediately east of the Capitol,
the Thompson-McClung House is typical of the Colonial Revival styles popular
at the time. The building's size, setting, and texture prefigure other units
in Boulevard, Virginia, and Quarrier Street rows especially because the house
is situated sideways on the lot with the recessed entrance centered in the
facade at the eastern elevation. A columned, three-bay porch facing the street
is topped with a plain deck rail, and two evenly placed hipped dormers grace
both sides of the building's steep, slate-covered roof. The house was built
as a manse in 1923 for Dr. Ernest Thompson of the First Presbyterian Church.

13. Lindenberg-Glass House, 2300 Kanawha Boulevard, East. Representing
the apogee of private East End Colonial style construction is the Lindenberg-
Glass House built in the early 1930s at a cost of over $200,000. The pink
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stucco, Spanish Colonial building combines excellence of proportion and harmony
of detail and color. The use of Baroque ornamentation is particularly effec-
tive in the facade where the design of details is in complete accord with the
entire structure, The arched casement windows are for the most part in groups
of three, and the typical Baroque feel is complemented with the use of twisted
pilasters that serve as mullions. Other Baroque notes include the cartouche
on the east wall and the ogee-moulded curve near the east chimmey. An ornate
hanging lantern and wrought-iron balcony dominate the entrance. The front
elevation is approached by a small, graduated patio flanked by urns, the
latter motif being carried out in the finials on the red Spanish tile roof

and in the open rafter beams. The flatness of the exterior walls is broken

by bays, and a continuity of surfaces is viewed in massive chimneys, a rare
buttress, and a battered wall at the rear.

14. Dr. Point House, 2444 Kanawha Boulevard, East. Built and designed
in 1920 by Charleston architect-~contractor Wallace Knight, this bungalow with
Colonial Revival detailing has five shallow gables at the front elevation that
lend emphasis to the low effect. Five massive brick pedestals support the
wrap-around porch that absorbs the height of the second story, endowing the
building with an illusion of the horizontal. Wallace Knight was a well-known
architect-contractor who constructed the West Virginia Governor's Mansion.

Dr. Walter Point was one of Charleston's earliest and best known obstetricians.

15, Smith-Giltinan House, 1223 Virginia Street, East., Late nineteenth
century Eclecticism is revealed in the asymmetrical plan of the buff brick
Smith-Giltinan Mansion. Both Queen Anne and Richardsonian qualities are
evident in the use of projecting bays, rounded arches, and rock-faced trim,
but the effect of the whole is that of the vertical manifest in the height
of two dominant bays merging as gables with the high~pitched hip roof. The
rounded eastern bay is marked by curvilinear detailing, including arched
windows, a rounded veranda on the ground floor, and a third story recessed
balcony beneath a half-conical roof; the northern bay is five sided and
pierced by rectangular window openings. The corner lot design of the mansion
is evinced by the double-door entrance vestibule located facing the corner
between the two bays. A sense of the delicate in the design is advanced with
the use of finely molded box cornices, dentil rows, and narrow, blond bricks.
A leaded-glass oriel at the eastern elevation lights an octagonal oaken stair-
well on the interior. Golden oak, cherry, and birdseye maple are several of
the hardwoods found throughout the house. Built c. 1890, the mansion was
commissioned by Harrison B. Smith, prominent attorney, businessman, and
president of the Kanawha Banking and Trust Company.

16. Jacob Friedman House, 1306 Virginia Street, East. The Friedman
House displays the picturesque Victorian qualities popular in the late 1890s.
Tts southwest corner is a rounded bay of textured brick surmounted by a
stuccoed, crenelated parapet trimmed with stone finials. The front gable is
sheathed in glass-and-marble-studded plaster, and the recessed balcony in the
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gable is hooded and decorated with short columns and a solid, crenelated rail.
Mr. Friedman was a dry goods merchant who operated a business at 17 Capitol
Street.

17. J.C. Morrison House, 1330 Virginia Street, East. Built in 1904, this
Tudor style house of brick and wood emphasizes a design centered upon four gables
at the front elevation. Projecting window bays and simulated half-timbering
break the structure's surface continuity. The roof is high-pitched and tile
covered., A stone watertable and stone porch details add a recurrent note of
solidarity to the design. J.C. Morrison was a president of the Capitol City Bank.

18. John Seale House, 1400 Virginia Street, East. This large brick house
is shored upon a massive, rusticated stone foundation, a theme carried through
in a rock-faced belt course heading the second~story front windows. A tall chimmey
is braced by a decorative metal rod, and. an eyebrow dormer is complemented by
corner brackets beneath several gables of the irregular, slate-covered roof.

John Seale was a coal operator and Charleston National Bank official.

19. Marion Gilchrist House, 1412 Virginia Street, East. Built in 1902,
this brick house features a:-centered entry sheltered by a columned veranda
running to the west around the corner. The gabled, three~sided bay on the
opposite side is centered at the front and has a stone~arched window decorated
with a beveled, leaded~glass fanlight. Marion Gilchrist was Assistant-Post-
master of Charleston in 1907. \

20. Kay-Ferguson House, 1419 Virginia Street, East. This orange-glazed
brick house built in 1912 is dominated by two enormous front dormers projecting
from the tiled, gable roof. A top-heavy note is evident in the wide projecting
eaves decorated with paired wooden brackets. This upward thrust is emphasized
by the radiating half-timbers in the dormer gables. Rusticated porch columns
of simulated ashlar support the mosaic tile porch, and a large stained-glass
window graces the structure's west elevation. James Kay was a Scottish
immigrant businessman, coal operator, and president of the West Virginia Clay
Products Company. :

21. Swisher~Blundon House, 1418 Virginia Street, East. A frame, late
Victorian-era structure with Eastlake overtones, this house has gables on each
side that are decorated with imbricated wooden shingles in half-round and diamond
shapes. A two-tier porch at the front elevation is designed in arch and pedimen=-
tal forms. A narrow, wooden watertable skirts the brick foundation whose corners
are detailed in rock-faced stone quoins. The roofline is typically irregular due
in part to the high, brick corbel-capped chimneys, and metal ridge cresting and
sea horse finials decorate the high-pitched hip roof. Mr, Charles Swisher, once
Secretary of State of West Virginia (1905-1909), lived in the house from 1909 to
1925,

22. Myers-Haley House, 1502 Virginia Street, East. The "1910 brick
rectangle' motif of this dwelling is only subtly disguised by a two-story
portico supported by large, wooden Ionic columns. Built in 1906-07, the design
incorporates a picturesque hip roof, complementary dormers, and ridges at the
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eaves slightly upturned, a recollection of the Oriental. Victorian-era
references are conspicuous in the leaded glass entrance sidelights and transom,
and in the idyllic stained-glass window at the west elevation depicting a
Greek goddess. The Soloman E. Myers family, from whom the house takes part of
its name, owned the '"Myers Brothers of Charleston'" plumbing business, and

Dr. Haley is the current owner.

23. Baer-Roderick House, 1578 Virginia Street, East. The English style
of this tall, gable~roofed house is accented by simulated half-timbered gables
and groups of peaked dormers on the east and west elevations. Clusters of
square stone columns support the one~story front porch detailed in half-timbering
and open rafter ends. Centered in the facade on the west side is a rounded
oriel with stained glass, and a hooded oriel graces the front center gable.

The house was built in 1914 for Dave Baer and designed by Charleston architect=-
contractor A.G. Higgenbotham.

24. Henry C. Dickinson House, 1579 Virginia Street, East. Built in 1903,
this gray-painted, brick mansion echoes the symmetrical and rectilinear propor-
tions favored by East End builders. Interior corner chimneys flank the shallow
hipped dormers centered in each roof elevation. The dominant one-story portico
gently curves in two angles about the front of the house. Ionic columms, a
balustrade, and a matching deck rail with turned balusters detail the porch.

25. The Woman's Club of Charleston Building, 1600 Virginia Street, East.
Designed by Walter Martens and built in the late 1920s, the Woman's Club is
a striking example of Chateauesque architecture. Set beneath high-pitched,
hip roofs of gray slate, the ornate facade features three arched entrance doors
above which a decorative wrought-iron balcony extends across the center block.
Symmetry and balance is achieved by ironwork above the entrance joining the
main block with the side pavilions. Walls are of stucco in cream color with
cornices of corbeled brickwork, and corners are strengthened with painted
brick quoins. The use of plaster swags and plaster lattice designs enhances
the building's side elevations.

26. Charles Capito House, 1605 Virginia Street, East., This mansion was
built c. 1910 for Charles Capito, Charleston grocer and wholesale liquor dealer.
The pedimented two-story portico is supported by paired, footless Ionic columns
with smooth shafts. The rusticated foundation for the columns forms the base
for flanking one-story, octagonal kiosks detailed with dentiled cornices and
matching but smaller Tonic columms.

27. Gluck~Pushkin House, 1615 Virginia Street, East. Vernacular treatment
of a Renaissance theme is revealed in the stone-appointed loggia fronting the
Gluck-Pushkin House. The arched openings are repeated in the treatment of the
windows and doors of the brick facade, while stone medallions and decorative
wrought-iron balconies lend additional Italianate touches to the balanced theme.
The house was built for businessman Jacob Gluck c. 1920.

28, L.E. McWhorter House, 110 Bradford Street, The McWhorter House is
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a turreted brick mansion of the early 1890s., The five~-sided tower at the
northwest corner is divided into three levels by the ground level porch and

by a horizontal panel between the second and third stories. Half-round, wooden
columns outline the tower window frames. Gables are plastered with marble-and-
glass stucco veined with simulated half-timbering, and rock-face stone belt
courses and stone consoles enrich the chimney bay on the building's northern
side. L.E., McWhorter was a prominent attorney associated with Isaac Loewenstein.

29. Alexander-Gentry Cottage, 1421 Quarrier Street. This one-story,
clapboard Victorian cottage, built c. 1891, represents the less pretentious
housing occasionally seen in the district. The L-shaped house features porches
with turned, wooden columns at the front and rear elevations. Rectangular
wooden shingles cover each of the three major gables. The uncoursed sandstone
block foundation, chimney pots, louvered shutters, and cast-iron fence point
to the "Gay Nineties'" period of its construction.

30. Arnold Midelburg House, 1425 Quarrier Street. Designed in a strict
Georgian Revival mode, this house is elevated on a high brick foundation and
embellished with rich classical detail. Built in 1912-13 and designed by
Wilbur T, Mills, the commanding proportions of the structure are due in part
to the tall gambrel roof. A large dormer in the Palladian order is centered
at the front. Classical details such as cornice modillions and dentils are
carried through in the Doric order of the entrance pavilion that is set left
of center. The fluted columns support an entablature embossed with tryglyphs.
The red bricks in the facade are arranged in a Flemish bonding with glazed
brick headers. Arnold Midelburg, a native of Austria, was a merchant in dry-
goods, landowner in Fayette County, and sawmill operator.

31. Judge Ira E. Robinson House, 1509 Quarrier Street. Designed and
constructed in 1908 by the Davidson Brothers of Charleston, the house exemplifies
imaginative vernacular interpretation of a Swiss Chalet theme. The expansive
gable roof descends gradually, terminating in wide, projecting eaves underpinned
with paired wooden brackets. The raking cornice in the front gable is decorated
with a fancy bargeboard that is duplicated in the entrance bay of the front
porch, Textured courses on the house are seen in the stucco of the gable,
shingles of the second story, and orange brick of the ground floor. Ira E.
Robinson was born near Grafton, served in the West Virginia Senate (1902-04),
and was appointed to the State Supreme Court by Governor William Dawson, after
which he was elected to the high court in 1908 and served until 1916,

32. Harold E. Shadel House, 1511 Quarrier Street. This house was built
for lumber king Harold E. Shadel c. 1910 and designed by the Davidson Brothers
of Charleston. The hip roof is intersected by bracketed gables at each
elevation of the house. Centered at the front above the porch is a rounded
window bay surmounted by a curved railing. The front porch is supported by
unusual vase-like, open shaft wooden columns with tendril-like wooden capitals
of Art Nouveau styling, and the entrance is flanked by intricately patterned,
leaded-glass sidelights., Harold E. Shadel was president and general manager of
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the Morgan Lumber and Manufacturing Company, the largest firm of its type in
the state c. 1910,

The East End Historic District maintains reasonable limits of scale,
proportion and spacing throughout. Most buildings are single or double family
dwellings of two or 2% stories; exceptions are primarily apartment units of
from three to six floors that blend quite well rather than more modern intrusioms.
Lots on a given block or facing a particular street are about equal in size, and
the structures are fairly evenly spaced. Those on Kanawha Boulevard have gener-
ally larger acreage with more sizable buildings and greater spaces between, while
those on the parallel streets to the north exhibit lesser dimensions, a more
verticle sense and smaller lawns. This compacting effect also takes place from
west to east, with the larger lots being at the former end.

Progressing from west to east one also observes more noticeable changes in
style--from the Queen Anne and eclectic of the second half of the nineteenth
century to the revivals of the pre-World War I period. Interspersed is a variety
of adaptations and elements of almost every style: Italianate, Eastlake, Shingle
and Romanesque features being more prevalent in the western area, while the
Georgian, Neo-Classical, Jacobethan, Prairie and Bungaloid are more often seen
toward the eastern section.

Buildings are predominantly of brick, but the number of frame and stuccoed
houses and the distinctions in such things as brick color adds variety. Frame
structures are painted variously, often the main body having a different color
than outstanding details. Decoration of buildings differs greatly, but fenes-
tration, especially in the use and treatment of dormers, is often decorative,
deep eaves with bracketing appear regularly, classic columns support interesting
porches on the many Georgian Revival examples, and tile roofs with ridge detail
are numerous. Roof designs and shapes run from the plain and straight, through
hip, gambrel, and combinations to variations like rounded and upturned gables.

For the most part, design quality and workmanship are average, but the
number of buildings designed by respected local architects and constructed by
reputable craftsmen is rather large. The Davidson Brothers, H. Russ Warne and
Walter F. Martens, for example, played significant roles in district evolution,
and their designs make up a sizable proportion of district buildings.

The district is in an area of fairly regular block patterns with evenly
spaced and parallel streets. As noted before, lots along Kanawha Boulevard are
larger than those along other streets, and building density tends to increase
from south to north and west to east., Facades along the boulevard are generally
set well back from the street line east of Bradford Street to Elizabeth Street,
but yard depth is much less along Virginia and Quarrier Streets. Open areas
that do exist have been created by the removal of housing or retaining of under-
developed lots. Most such spaces are used for parking, but a few exceptions are
seen where the area is grass covered. Ruffner Memorial Park is the only open
space planned for community use; however, the area between Kanawha Boulevard
and the Kanawha River is well maintained as a scenic esplanade, though its slope
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to the water line is relatively steep.

By and large, the district encompasses what was originally almost exclu~-
sively a residential neighborhood. Its basic character has always been, and
continues to be, one of single and double family dwellings with small apartment
buildings interspersed. Because of pressures of the downtown expanding from
the west and the Capitol complex enlarging to take in more land, the district
has witnessed a rise in land value and a corresponding push toward high rise
apartments and larger office units., While the original character has been
retained for the most part, many buildings along Kanawha Boulevard and the
western part of the district have been successfully adapted to office use or
replaced by new office or commercial structures (such as a motel and bank).
Buildings still serving as residences have often been converted to small apart-
ments that house several families, *

Somewhat surprisingly, most district buildings are in good to excellent
condition. There are a few exceptions, but these are predominantly due to a
lack of maintenance and could be improved with a small amount of effort. Exteriors
do not show many signs of alterations, and where work has been done it has almost
always been to refurbish or rehabilitate, thereby retaining the integrity of the
basic fabric wherever possible.

Only between five and ten percent of the buildings in the district can be
classified as non-conforming intrusions. Even the majority of these have many
qualities that blend rather than detract. For example, a high rise apartment
building in the center of the 1500 block of Kanawha Boulevard is disproportionate
in height, but the expanse of open space around it and the planting of trees and
shrubs has helped to mellow the effect., The newer office units (as opposed to
former residences that have been adapted to these purposes) generally conform

" to height and depth, but overall volume and style of construction detract from
the area. This is especially true of the western part of the district, in
particular in the 1200 and 1300 blocks of Kanawha Boulevard and Virginia Street.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Long regarded as the major early twentieth century subdivision of Charleston,
West Virginia's capital city, the "East End" embraces an area rich in historical
sites and events antedating the "turn of the century." While the primary urban
residential development of eastern Charleston occurred in the period 1895-1925,
the late eighteenth century settlement of the city and the formation of the
first Kanawha County government are events associated with the district. “After
1795 the settlement on the ‘banks of the Great Kanawha River expanded to the
mouth of the Elk River where the retail and industrial growth of Charleston were
to be centered for the better part of the nineteenth century. The broad bottom=-
lands east of here were privately developed under the Ruffner family and remained

. plantation grounds and cornfields for over 100 years.

In April 1788, Colonel George Clendenin and his party built a fortification
along the Kanawha River by order. of the Virginia Assembly and Governor Randolph
as part of the defense of that colony's frontier. In 1792 the fort was named for
Governor Henry ("Light Horse Harry') Lee, father of General Robert E. Lee, and
it continued to serve until 1795 when Indian wars abated. The location of Fort

" Lee has been placed in the vicinity of Kanawha Boulevard between Brooks and Morris

1.

Streets.

Official recognition of the settlement at the mouth of the Elk occurred in
1794 when the Virginia Assembly designated the location as "Charlestown" in honor
of Charles Clendenin, father of the founder. Of much greater significance, how-
ever, was the purchase of a 502 acre tract by Joseph Ruffner, a German-American
from Page County, Virginia. ' The land was located at Campbell's -Creek, six miles -
east of Fort Lee, and included the famous salt licks that were ‘to be developed
as a thriving industry in the early nineteenth century. When Ruffner appeared
in the spring of 1795 to inspect his new lands, he stayed for a time at Fort Lee
where he purchased from George Clendenin the thousand acre tract now encompassing
Charleston's downtown and East End residential neighborhood. It was in the latter -
area that he built a house near ‘today's "Holly Grove," and succeedlng generatlons
of Ruffners built their homes on this estate overlooklng the Great Kanawha.

~ Joseph, first of the Kanawha Ruffners, is buried in a tree-shaded cemetery in

the 1500 block of Kanawha Boulevard, now called Ruffner Park.

During much of the first half of the nineteenth century, Charleston expanded
along the river road (today's Kanawha Boulevard), a segment of the trans-Allegheny
route known as the James River and Kanawha Turnpike. The necessity for -a direct.
link between eastern Virginia and the -Ohio Valley was recognized by the 1eglslature
as early as 1785, With the completion of the turnpike during the decade of the
1820s, the salt makers, farmers, herdsmen and early manufacturers had ready accej
to the markets of east and west, and Charleston, belng a river cros31ng on' the
road, became a terminal point and stage depot. ;
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After the conclusion of the Civil War and with West Virginia's creation as
the thirty-fifth state, the town rapidly grew. The decade of the 1870s marked
an especially important period of growth when Charleston became a city by act
of the legislature on February 17, 1871, Completion of the Chesapeake and
Ohio Railroad to the town was celebrated in 1873, in 1875 Congress began making
appropriations for lock and dam improvements on the Kanawha River, and the
legislature designated Charleston as the state capital in 1869. When the seat
of government was moved back to Wheeling in 1875, the question of a permanent
location was again raised, so the legislature submitted the issue to the people
in 1877, and the vote in favor of Charleston resulted in the permanent transfer
of state government to this city in 1885,

The period in Charleston's development from 1885 to the end of World War I
was marked by great expansion, Location of the city in the heart of vast fields
of coal, gas, oil, and timber resources influenced its evolution from a rural
village to an industrial and retail center. The increase in population necessi-
tated expanded city boundaries, and more pretentious neighborhoods were a natural
outgrowth of wealth and political power. Major development prior to 1876 was
confined to the area west of Bradford Street, but municipal consolidation of the
lands east of Bradford was completed during the years 1892-1914. Gradual
dispersion of Ruffner lands accelerated with the First Ruffner Addition of 1895
and the Ruffner Brothers Additions of 1902 permitting the extension of major
through streets to a point near Elizabeth, and by 1907 the present grid pattern
of East End streets was generally established. The creation of the de Gruyter
Addition between Michigan and Chesapeake Avenues was undertaken as early as 1904,
and the Comstock and Kanawha Additions east of California Avenue were laid out

- by 1914,

Urban development potential soon outstripped agricultural values of the
lands, and as the population of Charleston increased from 7,447 to 39,608 between
1890 and 1920, East Charleston became the city's most fashionable residential
neighborhood. One U.S. Senator, five governors, five secretaries of state, two
congressmen, numerous city mayors, literary figures, judges, artists, merchants,
clergymen, industrialists, physicians, and other professionals made their homes
on former Ruffner lands. It was not until January 3, 1921, however, that the
most significant factor influencing the development of the district occurred, for
on that date the statehouse on Capitol Street burned. Legislative provision for
a building commission enabled Governor Ephraim Morgan to appoint a distinguished
panel that secured a scenic East End site for the new capitol in the autumn of
1923, Construction began on January 7, 1924, and ended with the dedication
ceremonies of June 20, 1932, The West Virginia Capitol Complex (which includes
the Governor's Mansion), is sandwiched between the two residential sections that
form the East End Historic District. With the seat of state government located
here, the neighborhood continued its character of affluence and beauty in
buildings still evident today.
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This area of Charleston has evolved, then, from open farmland with widely
scattered houses in the early eighteenth century, through a prolonged period of
subdivision that witnessed the start of a more residential character on the
western end by the 1880s, into a concentrated segment of development before World
War I, and finally to an established quality of a fine neighborhood of substantial
houses by the time the West Virginia Capitol was dedicated in 1932.

Although showing a concentration of styles, techniques, materials and
design of the latter nineteenth and early twentieth centuries, the district also
displays elements of its early beginnings and interim periods. Greek Revival
lines are evident in the MacFarland-Ruby House at 1310 Kanawha Boulevard, East
(c. 1835), and transitional features are seen in the Augustus Ruffner House at
1506 Kanawha Boulevard, East (c. 1834).

An increase in the number of residences began in the late 1880s and contin-
ued relatively unabated through the 1920s and early 1930s. Because of the period
and concern for style and fashion by the fairly affluent builders, many of the
houses displayed excellent detail in late Victorian-era modes. Queen Anne is
most prevalent, being seen in such houses as those at 1210, 1422 and 1636 Kanawha
Boulevard, East. All three were constructed about 1890, and each has steep,
multiple gables with ridge lines at right angles, high, paneled or corbled
brick chimneys, and a variety of sized and shaped windows. In addition, the
house at 1418 Virginia Street, East has some Eastlake features, and the eclectic
is evident at 1223, 1306 and 1400 Virginia Street, East.

Only a few places show transitional lines moving toward the Colonial
Revival styles, but the latter are profusely illustrated in buildings such as
those at 1500, 1520, 2006, and 2300 Kanawha Boulevard, East and 1425 Quarrier
Street. Built between 1912 and 1935, each of these has features peculiar to the
individual unit, but the columned porches at all but 2300 Kanawha Boulevard are
a common element. The latter is of a Spanish or Mission design and includes a
tiled hip roof, arched casement windows in groups of three and a recessed
entrance.

Although many of the houses are unique in one respect or another, it is the
quality of building and the quantity of structures spread over a rather large
area that gives the East End Historic District its character, Having come into
existence as a community in itself fairly slowly, the concentration of comnstruc-
tion from roughly 1895 to 1925 accentuates the feel gained through common elements
of size, materials, spacing, design and setting.

Local architects such as H. Russ Warne and the Davidson Brothers were active
in the area and helped to assure its character in the pre-World War I period.
Walter F. Martens, designer of the Governor's Mansion, was especially influential
in the 1920s with his Georgian Revival interpretations as may be seem at 1500 =
Kanawha Boulevard and 1509, 1528, 1556 and 1559 Virginia Street, 1In additionm,
Mr. Martens executed the attractive Woman's Club building at 1600 Virginia Street

in the Chateauesque style.
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Influences of the day can be viewed in the evolution of the district from
west to east. For instance, Virginia Street between Morris and Bradford includes
houses constructed during the period 1890-1910. Most are eclectic, with the
earlier units displaying features of Queen Anne intermixed with some Shingle,
Stick and Romanesque elements. Progressing to the block between Ruffner Avenue
and Elizabeth Street, the houses are mainly from theperiod 1910-1925, There
are a few early examples with Victorian-era features, but here the Georgian
Revival dominates where a style stands out, and examples of the Prairie style and
Jacobethan Revival are frequent. At the eastern extreme of Kanawha Boulevard,
between California and East Avenues, Bungaloid, Mission or Spanish Colonial
appear along with the Georgian Revival.

Within its greatest period of growth, then, the East End of Charleston
reflected housing in the styles generally prevalent in the United States at the
time. Since it developed from west to east, it is only natural that elements of
Queen Anne, Shingle, Stick, Eastlake and some features of Italianate, Romanesque
and Chateauesque appear in the western part more frequently, while Georgian
Revival, Prairie and Jacobethan extend from the center to the east.
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Street and number:

South side of Kanawha Boulevard, East from 1202 through 1636 and 2002 through
2444,

South side of Virginia Street, East from 1203 through 1623.

North side of Virginia Street, East from 1202 through 1634-42,

South side of Quarrier Street from 1405 through 1637-39.

North side of Quarrier Street from 1408-10 through 1638.

South side of Franklin Avenue from 1605 through 1637.

East side of Brooks Street between Kanawha Boulevard, East and Virginia Street,
East. :

Morris Street between Kanawha Boulevard, East and Virginia Street, East.

West side of Bradford Street between Kanawha Boulevard, East and Virginia Street,
East.

East side of Bradford Street between Kanawha Boulevard, East and Quarrier Street.
Ruffner Avenue between Kanawha Boulevard, East and Quarrier Street.

All of Manor Place.

Elizabeth Street between Kanawha Boulevard, East and Quarrier Street.

West side of Greenbrier Street between Kanawha Boulevard, East and Quarrier Street.
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9. MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

Laidley, George. History of Charleston and Kanawha Coupnty. Chicago: Richmond-
Arnold Publishing Co., 1911(?).

Venable, M.W. and Son Engineers. Comstock Addition Map, 1913, City of Charleston
Engineering Department.

10. GEOGRAPHICAL DATA
UTM References:

17/446280/4243355
17/446085 /4243065
17/445380/4243430
17/445180/4243715
17/445380/4243820
17/445380/4243820
17/445380/4243430
17/445020/4243650
17/444660/4243980
17/444840/ 4244155
17/445195/4243850
17/445225 /4243885
17/445265/4243850
17/445305/4243890

.

.
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Verbal Boundary Description

river. to the intersection with a line from Brooks Street.

The eastern section of the district begins on the Kanawha River at a point
extending in a line from California Avenue, northward along California Avenue
to a point one lot deep on Kanawha Boulevard, East, continuing eastward along
Kanawha Boulevard, East to East Avenue, thence along East Avenue in a line to
the Kanawha River, and west along the banks of the river to the intersection
with a line from California Avenue.
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10. GEOGRAPHICAL DATA
Acreage of Nominated Property 110 acres (approximate)

U T M References:

A. 17/447490/4242910 J. 17/445380/4243820
B. 17/447480/4242840 K. 17/445380/4243430
C. 17/446575/4242910 L. 17/445020/4243650
D. 17/446600/4243020 M. 17/444940/4243710
E. 17/446280/4243355 N. 17/445090/4243890
F. 17/446085/4243065 0. 17/445195/4243850"
G. 17/445380/4243430 P. 17/445225/4243885
H. 17/445880/4243715 Q. 17/445265/4243850Q
I. 17/445380/4243820 R. 17/445305/4243890

Verbal Boundary Description

The western section of the district includes approximately four lots to the

" west of Bradford Street between the Kanawha River and Virginia Street, East,
crosses Virginia Street to the north side and continues east (one lot deep) to
Bradford Street, north on Bradford Street to the center of Quarrier Street, along
the center of Quarrier Street to Shelton Avenue, thence to the north side of
Quarrier Street and continuing east (one lot deep) to Franklin Avenue, along the
center of Franklin Avenue to the west side of Greenbrier Street, south along
Greenbrier Street in a line to the Kanawha River, and west along the banks of the
river to the line from a point approximately four lots to the west of Bradford
Street.

The eastern section of the district begins on the Kanawha River at a paint
extending in a line from California Avenue, northward along California Avenue to
a point one lot deep on Kanawha Boulevard, East, “continuing eastward along Kanawha
Boulevard to East Avenue, thence along East Avenue in a line to the Kanawha
River, and west along the banks of the river to the intersection with a line from
California Avenue. ‘
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“~"Lewis R. Elias
1414 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

~” Roxalana Land Company
1204 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

. E. Dana Smith
28 Norwood Road
Charleston, West Virginia 25314

" Living Word Christian Center
1418 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

+~Ruth G. Anderson
1207 Upper -Ridgeway Road
Charleston,; West Virginia 25314

~—Corbett C. and Alice A. Mullins
1006 Overlook Way
Charleston, West Virginia 25309

w0.T, Orr
1306 Mt. Vernon Place
Charleston, West Virginia 25314

“Ethel W. Thayer
1422A Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

Twelve Twelve, Inc.
504 Kanawha Banking & Trust Building
111 Capitol Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

: Royahn Realty Company
c/o Regal Apartments
1424 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

United Mine Workers of America District 17 Clay Realty Company
1300 Kanawha Boulevard, East " 1426 Kanawha Boulevard, East

Charleston, West Virginia 25301

ORB Corporation
1306 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

Charleston, West Vlrglnla 25301

Jefferson Corporation
1500 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

-Eliz Hubbard Jeanne North
1310 Kanawha Boulevard,.East V51506 Kanawha Boulevard, East
. Charleston, West Virginia 25§01 Charleston, West Virginia 25311

‘Marvin Motels, Inc.
-"1316 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

Home Wood Corporation
“P,0. Box 2045

Charleston, West Virginia 25327
Charleston Federal Savings & Loan Assn.
1320 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

_-Harry F. Wagner, Sr.

1516 Kanawha Boulevard, East
» Charleston, West Virginia 25311
wEdgewater Apartments Corporation

1330 Kanawha Boulevard, East National Electrical Contractors
Charleston, West Virginia 25301 Assoc.

Electrical Building

1520 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

./ Clyde and Pansy Slater
1024 Euclid-Place
Huntington, West Virginia 25701

vFannie M. Steiger
1526 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311
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x'Marion P. Thomas -
1878 Loudon Heights Road “\\\\E
Charleston, West Virginia 25314



Philip J. Silverstein
Y1346 Morningside Drive
Charleston, West Virginia 25314

. Housing Authority of the City of
© 1005 Griffin Drive
Charleston, West Virginia 25312

, James R, Mason
71621 Loudon Heights Road
Charleston, West Virginia 25314
+~Curtis B. Trent, Jr.
1 Morris Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25301
»Genevieve G. Crawley
5 Veasey Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311
~Ceorge R. Collins
1560 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

.~Charleston Musicians Union Local
1562 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

Dayton W. Giles
1562% Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

..-Mason and Mabel Crickard
1564 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

x{.Charleston National Bank
” 201 Capitol Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

. Parkside Place, Inc.
1578 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

,~Dan C, and Geneva W. Schneider
1598 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

Charleston

136

\/Trinity Evangelical Lutheran Church

1612 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

vEstill, Greenlee and Associates,
212 Roane Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25302

Inc.

[
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~ W.Va. Surface Mining and Reclamatiom,

Assoc.
1033 Quarrier Street, Room 703
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

H.A. and Georgiana Bailey
1626 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

.~8.L. and Joyce A. Pullen
1632 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

.-Louise R. Griffin
2002 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

.Fred and Lillian Sclavi
2004 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

E/ﬁéatrice McClung
2006 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

“William T. Lively, Jr.
1542 Summit Drive :
Charleston, West Virginia 25302

wAmerican Legion, Dept. of W.Va.
2016 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

wRoy C. and Sybil J. Martin
4102 Staunton Avenue, Southeast
Charleston, West Virginia 25304

.-Harry Silverstein

2026 Kanawha Boulevard, East

Charleston, West Virginia 25311
»A.J. Frederick

1711 Loudon Heights Road

Charleston, West Virginia 25314

«J.,W. Herscher
2102 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

vGreglar, Inc.
c/o Terrace Park East Apartments
2106 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311



“L.H. and Blenna H. Young-
18 Norwood Road
Charleston, West Virginia 25314

National Bank of Commerce (Trustee Glass)

" 240 Capitol Street A
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

~Kenneth R. Brown
2306 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

vLuigi D. Trapano
- 2308 Kapawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

.S. Grover Smith, Jr. |
2310 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

Hebrew Educational Society
2316 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

~Charles C. and Eloise Walkup
1911 Oakridge Drive
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

\Pablo M. & Linda L. Paulg
2402 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

Bessie Lively
2406 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

i@eorge N. Howard
2408 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

“'R.C. Andrews
2410 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

v"Howard Rose
2412 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

~Frances W. Spencer
919 Newton Road
Charleston, West Virginia 25314

Vlester Yerrid
2428 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

FAREDS
=S

AFT © 77

~N.J. and Arita Rose
2430 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

,~Christopher G. and Emma J. Musella
2432 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

-Dorothy H. Levenson
2434 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

+»Dana J. and Bessie 0. Hoffman
2436 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

,~Nancy K. Burtnett
2438 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

{~Lula Florence Hart
2440 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

.~Arthur K. and Katherine E. Banks
2442 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

““flalter W. and Maude B. Point
2444 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

«Motor Car Supply Company
1203 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

“A.H. Boyd
110 Brooks Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

1-C.E. and Helen M. Conley
1204 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

:»Mrs, H.T. McFall
4902 Staunton Avenue
Charleston, West Virginia 25304

~Clyde Litton
1210 Virginia Street, East -
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

Jiittqn Realty Company
809 Kanawha Valley Building
‘300 Capitol Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25301



“Twelve-Eleven, Inc.
1210 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

yﬁhry Margaret MacCutcheon
1215 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

wMarion F. and Catherine F. Jarrett

1216 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

Fisher and Gilkeson, Inc.
1217 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

VVAdams-Sines, Inc.
1218 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

y/A,M. McCarus
912 Loudon Heights Road
Charleston, West Virginia 25314

L/]M%\rgaret K. Cracraft
" 1221 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

f»,,VAR'.Q.xssell V. and Margaret Braham
1222 Virginia Street, East

Charleston, West Virginia 25301 .

/Elsie Giltinan
1223 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

- The Moore Company
Box 2311
Charleston, West Virginia 25328

Junius T. and Helen Moore
1578 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Apartment 4b
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

»/ﬁountain State Nursing Home, Inc,
1301 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

Paul J. and Dorothy C. Aliff
1306 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

vQuentin G. Bullock
1 Ridge Road
Charleston, West Virginia 25309
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“Cora D. Washington
Box 629
Charleston, West Virginia 25323

£lara L. Gates
108% Capitol Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

«N.G, and Ruth Ehle
. 1584 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

wJames T. Spencer, Jr.
1314 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

~fhe Cavalier Apartments
1316 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

!/ﬁéy Dunivan Cadillac, Inc.
1311 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia -~25301

.Richard L. Howard

1321 Virginia Street, East
Apartment 1

Charleston, West Virginia 25301

George L. and Ruth R. Grubb
1324 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

Festine and Philip J. Collia, Jr.
1326 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

L/éregary C. Cummings

1221 Ridge Drive
Charleston, West Virginia . 25309

+Paul W. Tennant
933 Churchill Drive
Charleston, West Virginia 25314

!fﬁ. Gene Jordan
3 Abney Circle
Charleston, West Virginia 25314

A.G. Buckle
1413 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

Véherwin Steiger
205 McKinley Avenue

Charleston, West Virginia 25314



Simon A. Moses
1333 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

“Mary A. Collia
1334 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

.Bva Marie Luckey
1335 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

L-Thomas R. Linger
832 Chappell Road, Southeast
Charleston, West Virginia 25304

L Elizabeth S. Casto
1337 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

_Jane Anne Seal Newman
1400 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

v Edmunds Enterprises, Inc.
1408 Virginia Street, East

Charleston, West Virginia 25301 '

v"Nicholas and Edna Hanna
1876 Ellette Place
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

arl B, and Susie Early
1410 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

v%ity Bible Center
838 6th Avenue
Huntington, West Virginia 25701

vFrances G. Anderson
1414 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

:-"Charles N. and Doris A. Slack
1415 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

-Charles E. Bohnert
1577A Lee Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

Clyde L. and June M. Ferguson
1419 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

l~Anthony P. Spadafora
401 McKinley Avenue
Charleston, West Virginia 25314

“John C. Krivonyak
1143 Emerald Road
Charleston, West Virginia 25314

;~James T, and Jean M, Shreve
1501 Lee Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

~0la D. Farley :
1422 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

+-Golden G. Ruby
1424 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

~J
~.

~Chilton Realty and Development Co.

1116A Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

“'Mel and Gloria Ogrin
1106 South Homewood Drive
Charleston, West Virginia 25314

“Nellie H. Meeks
7 Veazey Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

LPeter A. and Mary Haley
1502 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

Mila R, Stuckey
1503 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

;Jééeph and Elizabeth A. Crim
1504 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

+Beatrice G. Lohmann
23 Maple Terrace
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

“The Belvedere, Inc.
1506 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

JMuffner R. Payne
909 Ridgeway Avenue
Charleston, West Virginia 25314



v William C. and Cary B. Weaver

1313 Mt. Vernmon Place

Charleston, West Virginia 25314

.-Elizabeth Edna Bardwell

i

1509 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

Nathan and Sara B. Maslow
1510 Virginia Street, East

Charleston, West Virginia 25311
““Fmarita B. Wehrle

1511 Virginia Street, East

Charleston, West Virginia 25311

Travis E., Sr., and Agnes Ellison

.David L., Jr., and Elsie E. Atkins

1512 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311
J

1513 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

,~Harrell-Ashley, Inc.

1514 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

LGuida and Margaret Tannarelli

Y
L

1515 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

Nora E. Farry and Loretta F. Greweling

1516 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

;,Rﬁlph D. and Charlotte B. Woods

1517 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

..Marion W. Hatcher

&

o

1518 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

Jenner M. and Hazel Gibson
1519 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

Vﬁ.P. Black

1520 Virginia Street, East

Charleston, West Virginia 25311

:~John Paxton and Mary Ann Shawver

1521 Virginia Street, East

Charleston, West Virginia 25311

ey
“r=)

]

i
-

~Walter S. and Rosemary F. Deyerle

1523 Candace Drive

Charleston, West Virginia 25311

t-Paul E. Joachin
1523 Virginia Street, East

Charleston, West Virginia 25311

;Gecil D, and Gertrude Kelley

1524 Virginia Street, East

Charleston, West Virginia 25311

~L.E, and Grace Hoke

1525 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia

1-Faye Abrams

10 Abney Circle
Charleston, West Virginia

{-Randolph L. Patteson
1526 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia

it~John L. Orr

1527 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia

L-&0n E,., Bird

1528 Thomas Circle
Charleston, West Virginia

;-Jalia L. Craddock
1529 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia

.~Walter Coopey

1530 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia

EfA:’Carl and Z.C. Hamstead

3 Manor Place
Charleston, West Virginia

Vﬁirginia G. Kemp

4 Manor Place
Charleston, West Virginia

g
vMargaret A. Wilson
5 Manor Place
Charleston, West Virginia

25311

25314

25311

25311

25314

25311

25311

25311

25311

25311

b/ﬁarry S., Jr., and Marianne Barr

6 Manor Place

Charleston, West Virginia 25311



L"V:irgi.ni.a J. Casto
1531 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

LE.S. and Helen Coffman
1532 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

Beatrice lLorentz
1534 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

L-Andy Angelo
1578 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

~William E. Sweeney
1636 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

/;Frances E. Perine
© 2214 Washington Street, East
" Charleston, West Virginia 25311

vflﬂ. McMillan
65 N. Abney Circle
Charleston, West Virginia 25314

. William O. McMillan
5010 Kanawha Avenue, Southeast
Charleston, West Virginia 25304

John O, McMillan
" 1550 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

. Annie M. Inboden
1551 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

. Warden T. and Martha A, Paris
1552 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

v’?aul D. and Grace Bibb
1552 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

\/James R. Mason
1553 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

“Valetta Wood
1553 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311
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-Dessie Makowicz Damewood
1554 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

...Ernest and Mary Husson
1555 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

i~Richard W. and Joyce Craddock
1330 Virginia Street, East
Apartment 7
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

+R.G, Lilly
1557 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

+-William J, and Dorothy B. Kenney

1558 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

_~Ruth B. Peyton

1559 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

“Robert S. and Virginia Greathouse
1560 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

\Edwin M. Shepherd
1561 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

.B.I. Gentry
1562 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

,~ReJ, Carroll

1563 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

é,Aéron H., Jr. and Septimis Rapking

1565 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

Klara Fisher
1567 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

“Elbert W. and Myrtle B. Gum
1568 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

vW. Byron and Gladys Maxwell
1570 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311



mﬁﬁgeina Bond
1572 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

.~First Presbyterian Church
16 Broad Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

_ Susan P. Slevin
“ 1574 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

~ P.J. Beattle, Jr.
"4 Comstock Place
Charleston, West Virginia 25314

.. Reba B. Cohen
1576 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

\Andrew V. and Sally Jane Roderick
1578 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

Robert B, and Kathryn W. McBride
102 Grosscup Road
Charleston, West Virginia 25314

udéseph J. and Rosemary M. Smith
1580 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

L«“"i;au]. H. and Mary W, Trotter
1582 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

. Mary G. Porter
1583 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

@M&rtle N. Wallace and Grover C. Dent

1584 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

Marlin A. and Catherine Coon
¥"1585 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

.~ J.A. and Mary Tierney
1587 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

. “Robert E. Johnson
1590 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

[
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~Charles E., Hamilton, Jr.
1596 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

.~-B'Nai Jocob Congregation
1599 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

.Charles M. Love, Jr.
1598 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

_Woman's Club of Charleston
1600 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

~Ester B. Frizzell
1601 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

“Marjorie M. Kugel
1603 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

. .Grace Taylor
1604 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

. American Red Cross
1605 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

-David and Freda Ogrin
1612 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

LM.Va, Diocese of the Episcepal
Church
1608 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

. -St. Francis Hospital
519 Donnally Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

Frank N. and Ruth Clark
1611 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

- James J., III and Lenora Faulkner
1514 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

~Carl E. and Mary L. Welch
1500 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311



. Wesley H. 0'Dell
504 Kanawha Boulevard, West
Charleston, West Virginia 25302

.-Rose S. Pushkin
1615 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

.-Bradley E. and Karen M. Layne
1800 Round Hill Road
Apartment 804
Charleston, West Virginia 25314

. -Fannie Berman
614 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

, William F. and Ruth Ann Whiffen
1620 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

 G.G. Hodges
Mount Hope, West Virginia 25880

. .Philip L. Cassis
1628 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

V/Virginia C. Hiserman
1630 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

.-John D, Price
208 Professional Building
1036 Quarrier Street

Charleston, West Virginia 25301

. Riley J. and Lucille Romeo
1633 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

~Helen Comstock
P.0. Box 583
Charleston, West Virginia 25322

Ruel W. and J. Louise Bias
1405 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

D, Gene Jordon
3 Abney Circle
Charleston, West Virginia 25314

“A.G. Buckle
14B Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

S
=

O
)
™1

t-8tanley C. and Nellie M. Duffield

1409 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

z-6ordon L. and Elizabeth Crice, A

2129 Penmnsylvania Avenue ff
Charleston, West Virginia 25302

“frravella Humphreys
1414 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

~¥irginia E. Kelly
1416 Quarrier Street-
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

.8alvador and Nelida Labate
1420 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

; Gussie E. Gentry
- 1421 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

LJose M. Lucente
1422 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

;. Eugene R. Hoyer
1617 Woodvale Drive
Charleston, West Virginia 25314

waérgaret C. Shawver
1426 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

t~James H. Walker
1323 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

“1.S. Abbot
1428 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

L€harles H. and Ethel R. McClave
1430 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

,L€arl E. and Mary L. Welch
1500 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

vSarah E. Gilchrist
1501 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

S



a/ﬁélba Lowry
1503 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

,D.N. Mohler
1504 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

“W.E. Mohler
971 Ridgemont Road
Charleston, West Virginia 25314

“William O., Jr.; and Jacquiline L. Davis

1506 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

“Lucille H. Shanklin
1507 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

-Beulah K. Nicholas
1508 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

r~-Judson C. Pearson
1596 East Kanawha Boulevard
Apartment 4
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

«-#nna S. Price
1511 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

tJohn T. and Rosalie Atkins
1512 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

vEttie D. Goshorn Estate
1515 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

.Charleston National Bank
Trustee for 1517 Quarrier Street
Charleston National Plaza
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

. Larry J. and Betty Lee Wampler
1520 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

i-Sarilda Frances Stanley and Lillian Jean

Morrison
1521 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311
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“W.C. Mitchell
1522 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

~Max and Frankie Koff
1523 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

o
" Nettie J. Howell

1525 Quarrier Street

Charleston, West Virginia 25311

«Vermita Fkey
1527 Quarrier Street
Apartment A
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

«Don L. Savage
1528 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

+Calvert R, and Virginia Smith
1529 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

:Morris A. and Frances Freedman
1530 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

LGeorge C. Duffield
1532 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

“{illiam Asseff
1533 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

~Agnes Evans
1534 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

““Philip G. Corey, Jr.
937 Mathews Avenue
Charleston, West Virginia 25302

.~Rebecca P. Morgan
1538 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

t-J.T. and Helen Moore
1541 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

¢-Simon and Ida P. Meyer
1540 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311



~Junius T. and Helen Moore
1541 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

;.~James W. and Kay M. Reader
1330 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Apartment 214
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

Charles T. and Margaret McHenry
1543 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

1.8tella M. Roller
1544 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

“Charles A. Williamson
1546 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

|-Margaret G. Lippirt
1548 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

i William Leigh Shepherd
1550 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

+Tee 0., Rockwell
1551 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

Vféo B. Gardner
1552 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

Taylor L. and Helen Mathews Palmer
1553 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

v Irene T. Wells
1554 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

.~Charles R, and Nellie Stouch
-1555 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

Oscar Nelson
¥ 1557 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

“W.Va. Education Association
1558 Quarrier Street

Charleston, West Virginia 25311
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:~Elliott M. Namay
1559 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

. William M, and Martha H. Barker
1562 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

“Frances L. Salisbury
1563 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

.Inge R. Klein
1428A Lee Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

“Elmira and Margaret McLaughlin
1565 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

.~Knnie Joseph
1566 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

~Robert E. and Evelyn Baer
1567 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

..~ Charles P. Baldwin

1568 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

1Mildred C, Lewis

1568 Lee Street, East

Apartment B

Charleston, West Virginia 25311

.Joseph R, and Elizabeth J. Blackburn

1570 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

‘flenry S. Trotter
1571 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

Jack M, and Jo Anne Martin
1572 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

«Thurmond and Martha F. Miller
1573 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

~Alma Elliott and Muriel Taylor
1574 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311



“Robert B. and Jacqueline C. Davis

1575 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

“William Chin
1576 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

vCharles and Manie Lively
1577 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

-Gomolco Realty Company, Inc.
c/o Attorney Saul Cohen
Box 2549
Charleston, West Virginia 25329

vJohn G. and Rita C. Morgan
1580 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

vKlel A, and Nellie Asseff
1581 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

.Bertrude G. and Rippetoe Kennedy
1582 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

v H. Milton and Ida Harr
1583 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

. N.G. and Ruth Ehle

71584 Quarrier Street

Charleston, West Virginia 25311

,Roy S., Jr., and Lorraine M. Samms

1585 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

vWilliam R. and Yvonne F. Stump
1586 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

{-Harry T. and Marian W. Spence
1587 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

Marvin Cohen
1588 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

VVirgil H. and Lena R. Stewart
1589 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

_-James A. and Maybelle P. Whitlock

1590 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

“Jesse T. and Marion M. Dunn
1592 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

E.M. Johnson
704 Union Building
723 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

Vﬁ}ancis G. Johnson
1594 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

wﬁgvid E. Borstein
1595 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

i Milliam E, Pittman, Jr.
640 Gordon Drive
Charleston, West Virginia 25314

Kenneth R, Talbott
1599 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

““Boyd D. Elkins
1599A Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311
3.V, Ranze
1 Morris Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

.-Marjorie H. Courtney
1608 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

..Julia A, Sadd
402 Elm Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25302

—~H.E. Hubbard

National Bank of Commerce Building

Charleston, West Virginia 25301

Alva and Edith Markley
1612% Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

!//

Gary F. and Sonja K. Cooper
19 Lance Drive
Charleston, West Virginia 25311



x/L; Hunter and Elizabeth M. Coen
1616 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

;.-Tony and Helen Lopez
1618 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

«L,C. Sarver
Box 54
Lewisburg, West Virginia 24901

“Harry C., Jr., and Rose Marie Morrison

1620 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

r~Julia and George S. Simon
3902 Noyes Avenue, Southeast
Charleston, West Virginia 25304

v-Claude A. and Aida W. Clements
1622 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

« Doran H. and G.R. Frame
144 Sunset Drive
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

L1lillian legg
1624 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

William D. and Sylvia J. Stevens
1427 Maple Avenue
Zanesville, Ohio 43701

AyJﬁne Robertson Martin
1627 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

u{&cille Stuart
1628 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

,-T.J. and Mabel Straugham
1630 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

.~ Helen C. Benn and Frances C. Davis

1631 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

+C.D. and Julia Poindexter
1632 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia “25311
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i”"'I\i:l'.nz:t S. Hall
1633 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

tFreda Jean Slaymaker
1635 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

~Philip H. Hill
1427 Sweetbrier Drive
Charleston, West Virginia 25314

~Ruffner Memorial Presbyterian
Church
1698 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

+~Robert J. and Margaret M. Atkins
1605 Franklin Avenue
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

"Genevieve F. and Catherine L. Grimm

1607 Franklin Avenue
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

““Thomas Burnell and Frances E. legg
1609 Franklin Avenue
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

- Thomas C. and Eleanor S. Reeves
1011 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

.-George S. and Julia Simon
3902 Noyes Avenue, Southeast
Charleston, West Virginia 25304

~Patricia B. Sines
1019 Edgewood Drive
Charleston, West Virginia 25302

v.Katherine M. Richardson
1633 Franklin Avenue
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

- +F. & M. Corporation

c/o Morris Steiger
817 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

" Steven J. Koening
608 Gordon Drive
Charleston, West Virginia 25314



~Frances B. Pritchard
20 Brooks Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

One Morris, Inc.
1 Morris Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

Aelia Cunningham
2 Morris Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

AMax Roth
1548 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

«Andrew S. Jr., and Marian P. Thomas

902 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

PJA.S. and Sarah Toovy
28 Bradford Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

v Julia Seal
104 Bradford Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

+Helen I. Henson
114 Bradford Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

VﬁfT., Jr., and Eliz B. Moore
P.0. Box 9
Charleston, West Virginia 25321

vJohn L, and Thelma C, Hunt
213 Oney Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

vJames H. Walker
1323 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

Vﬁ; Eugene Proctor
109 Elizabeth Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

%démes E. and Jeanne M. Knapp
110 Elizabeth Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

+Mabelle W. Hatch
112 Elizabeth Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311
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.Harold L. and Alice Smith.
1908 Pine Manor Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

“Kanawha County Board of Education
200 Elizabeth Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

“Viola E. Baker
5 Greenbrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

vWilbur C. Moorman
1210 E. Virginia Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

.Ira L., Jr., and Edith L. Dadisman
9 Greenbrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

iCharleston National Bank
Charleston National Plaza
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

~John V., Merrifield
1226 Ohio Avenue
Charleston, West Virginia 25302

JEee Lucas
1614 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

“Welton and Dorothy C. Greenlee
2424 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

- J. David Colby
“’1 Willowood Place
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

«Martin Kommer
1416 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

wKatherine L. Gamble
1540 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

yDavid W. Andersen
1554 A Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

Robert and Brenda K. Mills
- 1566 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311



%Eorge M. Bratt
1519 A Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

“Joan C. McWhorter
1626 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

Forrest J. Skaggs
1625 Franklin Avenue
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

NVictor A. Barone
1598 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

v+Sandra L. Noe
109 Greenbrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

Town House Apartments
1202 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

 Western and Southern Life Insurance
Company
1404 Kanawha Boulevard, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

,MWilliam O. McMillan
1548 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

vBelknap Apartments
1622 Virginia Street, East
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

vHomestead Inn
1408 Quarrier Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25301

.~ Helen C. Benn
1631 Franklin Avenue
Charleston, West Virginia 25311

Edna J. Duncan
110 Bradford Street
Charleston, West Virginia 25301






















